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The 1860 Egg Hill Church

Francis Asbury

May 24 1738
John Wesley's heart-

warming experience at
the Aldersgate Street

meeting

1760
Methodism in America
at this time was a lay

movement. Robert
Strawbridge started the
first classes in America
in Maryland and Virginia

Oct 1766
Philip Embury and

Barbara Heck started a
class in New York City

1767
Captain Thomas Webb

started a class in
Philadelphia

May 10 1767
Philip William Otterbein,
an ordained pastor of the

German Reformed
Church, and Martin

Boehm, a Mennonite
pastor, met in Isaac

Long's barn in Lancaster,
Pa and agreed to work

together to evangelize to
the German-speaking

people in America

Oct 30 1768
The first Methodist

church in America, built
on John Street in New
York City and called
Wesleyan Chapel

dedicated.

Nov 05 1768
At Fort Stanwix (Rome,
NY) the treaty with the

Six Nations (the
Iroquois) was finalized
that conveyed the land

south of the West
Branch of the

Susquehanna River to
the British

1769
St. Georges Church in

Philadelphia was
purchased by the
Methodist Society

1769
John Wesley sent
preachers Richard

Boardman and Joseph
Pilmore to America.
They came to form

Societies for persons of
all denominations who
"earnestly desire to flee
from the wrath to come"
and who desire to "walk
according to the Oracles

of God." Pilmore
concluded by saying
"this is our one point,
that Christ died for us,

to live in us and to reign
over us in all things."

1769
Andrew Boggs built the

first home in Centre
County "on the left bank

of Bald Eagle creek
directly opposite to an

old Indian Village on the
flats near where
Milesburg is now

situated."

1771
John Wesley sent
preachers Richard
Wright and Francis
Asbury to America

1773
First Conference of the
Methodist preachers in
America. 10 attended.
These preachers would

not administer the
Sacraments since they
were laypersons. The
people were to receive
the Sacraments at the
local Anglican church.

1773
There were 1,160
Methodists and 10

preachers in Maryland,
New Jersey, New York,

Pennsylvania, and
Virginia

1774
Lovely Lane Chapel
erected in Baltimore

1779
Methodist societies

numbered 8,673
members

1783
Treaty of Paris ending

the American Revolution

1784
John Wesley

consecrated Thomas
Coke as Superintendent
and sent him to America

along with Richard
Whatcoat and Thomas
Vasey, both of whom
Wesley had ordained.
This ordination is what
ultimately permitted

Methodism to become
an independent church

Dec 24 1784
Methodist Episcopal
Church formed at the

Christmas Conference,
Baltimore, MD

Dec 27 1784
Ordination of Francis

Asbury

1785
The Methodist

Episcopal Church
published its first

Discipline

Oct 1786
Aaronsburg was laid out

as the first town in
Centre County

1787
William Sankey settled
in Potter Township. He
was a member of the

Pennngton class

1787
At the head of Penn's
Valley, at Linden Hall,
the Benn-Pennington
family of Methodists
settled and formed a

class.

Jul 1787
Philip and Susannah
Antes bought land in

Bald Eagle Valley and
erected a grist mill and

a saw mill. The first
Methodist class in

Centre County was held
at their home at the

present Curtin Village.
This was an extension

of Little York and
Juniata Valley circuits.

1788
Peter Gray came to Half

Moon Valley with his
extended family. His

home became a
meeting place for a
Methodist class.

1789
Methodist Book

Concern, first church
publishing house in
America, organized

1790
Peter Gray's house
became a preaching

place on the Huntingdon
Circuit

1791
Center Furnace village

settled

1791
Northumberland Circuit

created. Richard Parriott
and Lewis Browning

were appointed. Stops
in Centre County were
Antes (Bald Eagle),
Benn-Pennington

(Penn's Valley), Potters
Mills, and Brush Valley

1792
The Methodist

Episcopal Church held
its first Quadrennial

Conference

1795
Bellefonte laid out

1797
James Kinner preached
on Logan's Branch of

Bald Eagle Creek near
present day Axemann

Feb 13 1800
Centre County formed

Sep 25 1800
The United Brethren in
Christ was organized in

Frederick, MD

1802
Christian Newcomer, a

United Brethren
preacher visited Half
Moon Valley, Centre
Furnace, Buffalo Run,
Milesburg, and Penn's

Valley on his trip
through the area.

1804
Bald Eagle Chapel built

this year

1806
The first church at Curtin
was erected. Up till this
time they met in the mill

1807
The Evangelical
Association was

organized by Jacob
Albright to serve

German speaking
Methodists.

1808
The Methodist

Episcopal Church
drafted a Constitution

1810
The original Warrior's

Mark Methodist
Episcopal log church

was erected on
Benjamin Hyskell's land.

1811

Bishop McKendree
preached one or two
sermons in the area

1813
Bishop McKendree was
injured in a fall from his

horse and stayed at
Peter Gray's house for

several weeks to
recuperate.

1814
Robert Pennington

erected a log meeting
house near Centre Hall.

1814
Huntingdon Circuit

served as close to this
areas as Warrior's Mark,

Half Moon, and
Pennsylvania Furnace. It
covered just short of 300
miles. It was served by

James Reiley, great
grandfather of James M.
Reiley who served St.

Paul's 1909-1917

Apr 1817
Bellefonte's first

Methodist class met in
the home of James

McGee

Nov 1822
The first Methodist

Episcopal Church in
Bellefonte was

completed

1825
A log structure was

erected for the United
Brethren in Bellefonte at
the corner of Smith and

High streets

1828
The Methodist

Protestant Church split
off from the Methodist
Episcopal Church over

the authority of the
episcopacy without lay

representation

1830
A Methodist class was
formed at Martha when
the Martha Furnace was

erected

1830
The Sprucetown

(Potter's Mills) society
was organized

Nov 01 1830
The 5th General

Conference of the
Evangelical Association

met at John Adam
Hennig's home near

Woodward.

1831
A log church was built in

Philipsburg

1831
The Buffalo Run class
was founded. They met

in Waddle's school
house.

1832
A Methodist Society

was organized in
Boalsburg

1833
A church was built in

Boalsburg costing $800
Dec 1835

John Foul, a United
Brethren preacher came

to Centre Furnace

1837
The mother church of

the Evangelical work in
this part of the county

was erected on Egg Hill

1837
Julian class formed

1837
Methodist church in
Spring Mills erected

1837
Stormstown church, on

Half Moon Circuit
erected

1839
Paradise (Musser's)
Church near Millheim

hosted the United
Berethren General

Conference. A
constitution was

adopted, the delegate
system for future

General Conferences
was approved and John
Seybert was installed as

the first Bishop.

1840
Sprucetown Church

erected

1841
Clement Beckwith

moved from Bellefonte to
Port Matilda and erected

several buildings.
Classes were held in an
upper room of one of his

buildings

1843
The first Methodist class

held at Fillmore

1844
The Methodist

Episcopal Church,
South split off over

slavery and the power of
the bishop

Jun 25 1848
Aaronsburg Methodist

Episcopal church
dedicated

1850
Martha Church

dedicated

Apr 02 1850
A subscription was

taken up for a visiting
minister at Curtin
Village. 16 people

donated $5 each, an
unprecedented $102.50
was raised. This was
more than two months
pay for the minister.

Most workers earned 50
cents to $1 a day. The
forgeman earned $4/ton

and for 2 months in
1850 produced 10.5

tons.

1852
The Centre Furnace
Church held regular

services, Sunday school,
temperance meetings of
which there was great
need, and all sorts of

neighborhood gatherings

1853
Martin Houser was won
to the church. He and
his wife Catherine sold
land for a church site in

Houserville

Sep 12 1855
Agricultural College

founded, the beginnings
of Penn State University

1858
Centre Furnace ceased

production of iron.

1860
Centre Furnace was a
point on the Penn's
Valley Circuit with
George Warren

appointed. The Centre
Furnace class was lead
by Jacob Botdorf and

had 39 members.

1862
A Methodist class was
held on the campus at

the college

1866
The Methodist

Episcopal Church,
South admitted lay
representatives to

Conference

1868

The Central
Pennsylvania

Conference was
organized by the

General Conference held
in Chicago, Ill.

1870
The Methodist

Episcopal Church,
South set apart the
Colored Methodist
Episcopal Church

1872
The Methodist

Episcopal Church
(North) admitted lay
representatives to

Conference

1872

The Half Moon Circuit
was divided into Half
Moon and Pine Grove

Mills with Centre
Furnace part of the Pine

Grove Mills Circuit
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1890's photo showing St. Paul's
Church red and white steeple in

background

1882

There were 13 Methodist
Episcopal church

buildings within 6 miles
of State College

1883
Rock church erected

1887 - 1888
Samuel Ham, Pastor,

Pine Grove Mills Circuit

1887

The Centre Furnace
church, which would

have been across what
is now College Ave from
the furnace, was in need

of extensive repair.
Instead, the

congregation split into
two and built in State
College and Lemont

1888 - 1888
William Brill, Pastor,

Pine Grove Mills Circuit 1888 - 1890
John C. Young, Pastor,
Pine Grove Mills Circuit

Feb 26 1888

St. Paul's Methodist
Episcopal  Church first
building, at the corner of

Lemont Pike (now
College Ave.) and
McAllister St. was

dedicated, total cost $3,
500.  State College was

part of a six church
circuit with Pine Grove

Mills, Meek's (Fairbrook),
Boalsburg, Lemont and
Pennsylvania Furnace.
The circuit was referred
to as the State College

Circuit.

1889
The Methodist

Episcopal Church in
Lemont is established

1890 - 1892
Alfred Lawrence Miller,

Pastor, Pine Grove Mills
Circuit

1890

A room for smaller
children's Sunday

school was built as
an addition for $800.

1890
The US Census listed
86 Evangelical, United
Brethren and Methodist
Episcopal churches in
the county. All of the
county's churches (all
denominations) had

seating capacity for 50,
464 while the county

population was only 43,
190.

1892 - 1893
John Wesley Grover,

Pastor, Pine Grove Mills
Circuit

1893 - 1894
Ralph W. Illingworth,

Pastor, Pine Grove Mills
Circuit

1893

The first parsonage was
built on the corner of
McAllister St. and

Beaver Ave for $2,000.

1894 - 1895
John Wesley Forrest,

Pastor, Pine Grove Mills
Circuit

1895 - 1899
Asbury W. Guyer,

Pastor, State College
Circuit

1897

The Sunday School
Library already

contained 190 books.

1899 - 1902
William F. D. Noble,
Pastor, State College

Circuit

1902 - 1906
Edgar R. Heckman,

Pastor, State College
Circuit

1904

Discussions began
regarding the need to
build a bigger church

building

1906 - 1909
Charles C. Snavely,

Pastor, State College
Circuit

1907

State College and
Lemont were alone on
the circuit at this time.

1908

St. Paul's had 130
members

Oct 29 1908

The Board of Trustees, at
a meeting on this date,

were asked to commit to
the new building and
together (9 members)

made pledges of $4,000
($2 Million today's

equivalent) toward a new
building

1909 - 1917
James McKendree

Reiley, Pastor, State
College

1909

State College became a
standalone charge

Jun 30 1909

The congregation
decided to build a new

church building

Jun 20 1910

Ground was broken for
the new church building.

There had been
objections by the

borough engineer to
building on the property
line. When informed that

other public buildings
had also been built on
the property line the

objections were
overturned.

Jul 05 1910

St. Paul's Methodist
Episcopal Church of
State College was

incorporated

Sep 18 1910

The cornerstone of the
new building was laid.

Jan 22 1911

The congregation moved
into the basement for

worship

Mar 03 1912

Final dedication
ceremonies were held.
The building cost $45,
000. In addition, the

Estey water motor organ
cost $3,000

Oct 1912

The Brotherhood Class
was organized. It
continues today.

Dec 02 1912

The Modern Crusader's
Class was organized. It

was merged into the
Friendship Class which

continues today.

Jan 12 1914
Boy Scout Troop 31

started

1915

Membership, including
probationers was about

500. Sunday School
was more than 700

1916 - 1917
Budget, Current

Expenses $2,864;
Benevolences $1,100;

Debt Service $275. Total
$4,239.

1917 - 1922
John Long, Pastor,

State College, St. Paul's

1920

700 students gave
"Methodist" as their

church preference upon
registration at Penn
State. The Annual

Conference approved
funds for support of work

with students through
St. Paul's.

Aug 1920

Rev. Harry F. Babcock,
pastor of the Half Moon
charge accepted the

challenge to work with
the students and the

Wesley Foundation was
incorporated later that

year.

1921

The parsonage on the
corner of McAllister St.

and Beaver Ave was
sold

1921 - 1924
Harry Babcock, Pastor,
student at Penn State

1922 - 1923
Robert C. Peters,

Pastor, State College,
St. Paul's

Oct 03 1922

The Wesley Foundation
addition to the church
(called the Foundation
Annex) was dedicated.

This is currently the
gym/office/Asbury room

portion

1923 - 1929
Archibald E. Mackie,
Pastor, State College,

St. Paul's

1924 - 1925
Charles C. Cole, Pastor,

Wesley Foundation

1925 - 1930
Edwin H. Witman,
Pastor, Wesley

Foundation

1926

A new stone Colonial
parsonage was built at
the corner of Beaver

Ave. and Garner St. The
cost of building and
furnishings was $27,
000. The 1928 Annual
Conference minutes
note that the Bishop
called it "one of the

finest in all Methodism."

1929 - 1931
Andrew L. Bixler, Pastor,
State College, St. Paul's

1930 - 1932
W. Emory Hartman,

Pastor, Wesley
Foundation

1931 - 1935
George H. Ketterer,

Pastor, State College,
St. Paul's

1932

Several members of the
Official Board were

concerned about the
indebtedness of $17,

500. A 14 year plan was
implemented to retire

the debt. It was
successful

1932 - 1936
G. Cecil Weimer, Pastor,

Wesley Foundation

Apr 01 1933

A 3 manual Moller organ,
purchased for $6,000

plus the value of the old
Estey organ, was

installed.

1935 - 1942
Harry F. Babcock,

Pastor, State College
St. Paul's

1936 - 1942
C. Gail Norris, Pastor,
Wesley Foundation

Apr 29 1938
The Methodist

Episcopal Church,
South approved the plan
of merger. This was the
last approval necessary

as the Methodist
Episcopal Church
(North) and the

Methodist Protestant
Church had already
approved the plan.

May 10 1939
The final act of formation
of the Methodist Church,
combining the Methodist

Episcopal Church,
South, the Methodist

Episcopal Church
(North), and the

Methodist Protestant
Church.

Sep 16 1940

The Woman's Society of
Christian Service was
formed as a merger of

several preexisting
groups as the result of

the merger of the
national church. This is
the predecessor of the

United Methodist
Women

Nov 04 1940

The church By-Laws
were changed to follow
the national change and
the organization became

St. Paul's Methodist
Church

1942 - 1947
William E. Watkins,
Pastor, State College

St. Paul's

1942 - 1947
Malcolm V. Mussina,

Pastor, Wesley
Foundation

Apr 29 1942

A house across
McAllister St. was

purchased for the part-
time custodian residence
at a cost of $3,500 plus
$2,000 immediately for
repairs. Part of the lot

was converted to
parking.

Nov 14 1944
The property on the

corner of Miles St. (now
Locust Lane) and Calder
Alley was purchased by

Wesley Foundation.

1946
The Evangelical United
Brethren Church (EUB)

was formed by the
merger of the

Evangelical Church with
the Church of the United

Brethren in Christ

Jul 01 1946

The property on the
corner of Miles St. (now

Locust Lane) and
College Ave. was
purchased by the

Wesley Foundation

1947 - 1957
Frank. W. Montgomery,
Pastor, State College

St. Paul's

1947 - 1949
Bruce E. Gideon, Pastor,

Wesley Foundation

1948

Penn State chapter of
Kappa Phi founded

Apr 01 1948

St. Paul's purchased the
Foundation Annex for
$30,000 and the Dr.

Robison house became
the temporary

Foundation building

Jan 01 1949

St. Paul's officially took
over planning and

scheduling Wesley
Foundation programs

1949 - 1952
Mrs. Dorothy Anderson,

Director, Wesley
Foundation at Penn

State

Oct 1950
Cub Scout Pack 31

chartered

1952

St. Paul's library
contained approximately
600 books and received
$50 per year in funding.

1952 - 1953
Miss Dorothy Blanchard,

Director, Wesley
Foundation at Penn

State

1952

Central Pennsylvania
Conference churches

initiated a campaign for
$175,000 toward the
total cost of $350,000

for a new Wesley
Foundation building.

1953 - 1955
Miss Eunice (Pat) Floyd,

Director, Wesley
Foundation at Penn

State

1955 - 1963
Richard Waller Nutt,

Pastor, Director, State
College Wesley

Foundation

1957 - 1974
Nelson H. Frank, Pastor,
State College St. Paul's

1957

Wesley Foundation
building was dedicated

1959

The Religious Education
Building was

constructed on
McAllister St. between
Calder Alley and Beaver

Ave.

Mar 01 1959
Religious Education
Building dedicated

1962 - 1964
William Hunt Watson,

Pastor, Associate
Director State College
Wesley Foundation

1964

The Education Building
was expanded by

adding a section toward
Beaver Ave.

1964 - 1968
Alan Cleeton, Pastor,

Director, Wesley
Foundation at Penn

State

1965

300 East Irvin Ave. was
purchased as a

parsonage

1965 - 1975
Arthur Machir Saddoris,

Pastor, Director,
Wesley Foundation at

Penn State

1968
The Methodist Church
and the Evangelical

United Brethren
churched merged to

form the United
Methodist Church

1968 - 1977
Ned E. Weller, Pastor,

Wesley Foundation

1969

The Frank Chapel was
established to honor

Rev. Dr. Nelson Frank,
pastor from 1957-1974,
and his wife Kathryn.

1974 - 1980
Bruce D. Fisher, Pastor,
State College St. Paul's

1975 - 1982
Donald C. Nolder,
Associate Pastor

1975

The first Associate
Pastor was appointed
and the parsonage at
1310 Park Hills Ave.

was purchased

1977 - 1982
Ned E. Weller, Campus
Minister, State College

United Campus
Ministries

1979

Major repairs and
updating of the Moller
organ at a cost of $63,

000.

1980 - 1982
Robert Vowler, Pastor,
State College St. Paul's

1982 - 1992
John W. Stamm, Pastor,
State College St. Paul's

1982 - 1986
Rick L. Eminhizer,
Associate Pastor

1982 - 1983
Ned E. Weller, Campus
Minister, United Ministry

of Penn State

Jun 1985

Construction began to
renovate the church

building. The Centennial
Campaign raised $600,

000 for the project.

1986 - 1990
John A. Schaefer,
Associate Pastor

Dec 07 1986

Dedication of the
remodeled church

Nov 13 1987

The sanctuary/social
room section of the

building was completely
destroyed by fire. The

gym/office/Asbury room
section (old Wesley

Annex) received
extensive smoke and

water damage.

Jan 24 1988

The congregation voted
to rebuild on the same
site. The church was
rebuilt within the old

walls in order to be able
to build to the property

line based on the
precedent set in 1910.

May 14 1989
The cornerstone for the

rebuilt church was
dedicated

1990 - 1994
Donald R. Slaybaugh,
Jr., Associate Pastor

Feb 11 1990

The rebuilt church was
dedicated.

Oct 07 1990

The 1543 pipe Dobson
tracker organ was

dedicated

1992 - 2000
Donald R. Shover Jr.,
Pastor, State College

St. Paul's

1993

The 300 E. Irvin Ave.
parsonage was sold and
a new one purchased at

910 Kay St. in
Boalsburg

1994 - 1998
Ruth Ann Campagna,

Associate Pastor

1998 - 2000
Carlton D. White,
Associate Pastor

Jan 10 1999

By vote of congregation,
ownership of the Wesley

Foundation Building
transferred from Central

Pennsylvania
Conference to St. Paul's
and corporation name
changed to St. Paul's

United Methodist
Church and Wesley

Foundation.

Jan 16 1999

Corporation constitution
and by-laws officially

changed for the new St.
Paul's United Methodist

Church and Wesley
Foundation

2000 - 2007
Thomas H. Jacobs,

Pastor, State College
St. Paul's

2000 - 2002
Cynthia Raski Fuller,

Associate Pastor

Jan 15 2001

Congregation voted to
proceed with plans to
conduct a financial

campaign and
develop drawings to
replace the Wesley
Foundation Building.

2002 - 2005
Pamela Haddon Ford,

Associate Pastor

Apr 06 2003

Congregation voted to
establish a Building

Committee for
remodeling/rebuilding

facilities and acquisition
of additional property

Jul 27 2003

Church Conference
voted to purchase the
Uni-Mart building, 128

Locust Lane (now
referred to as Building 4)

for $624,000

Aug 10 2003

Corporation votes to
approve purchase of 128

Locust Lane

2005 - 2016

Eric J. Shafer,
Associate Pastor

Dec 11 2005

Congregation voted
to proceed with a
Capital Campaign

and develop detailed
design and
necessary

preconstruction work
to remodel the

Education Building

Dec 06 2006

Congregation voted to
proceed with

construction to remodel
the Education Building
for a cost of $3,150,000

2007 - 2014
G. Edwin Zeiders,

Pastor, State College
St. Paul's

Apr 20 2008

Remodeled Education
Center dedicated.

Jan 15 2012
Congregation voted to
proceed with plans to
conduct a financial
campaign feasibility
study  and develop

drawings to replace the
Wesley Foundation

Building

Jan 27 2013

Started a year long
celebration of 125 years
of Sharing the Story and

Shaping the Future

2014 - 2016
J. Neal Lassinger,

Pastor, State College
St. Paul's

2016
Gregory Milinovich,

Pastor, State College
St. Paul's 2016

Rebecca McGee,
Associate Pastor


